Londonderry Historical Society Tour 2025

The Grounds

All the buildings on our property were brought here from other locations in town to save them from being torn down. This was made possible in large part through the generosity of the Mack family. The Macks donated 2 ½ acres of their property to LHS in 1990 to use to preserve Londonderry’s rural history. The Macks also donated the land for Moose Hill Kindergarten. Mack’s still maintains the rows of apple trees on our property.


Morrison House

      Introduction
The Morrison House is a Cape style structure built around 1760 by James Morrison, whose father was one of the men who chartered the town of Londonderry. The Morrison family came to Londonderry (then called Nutfield) from Ireland in 1719.  The home originally stood in North Londonderry at the corner of Clark and Rockingham roads, near where I-93 Exit 5 is today. It was moved here in 1989 and is one of the few prerevolutionary homes in town. The house was listed on the New Hampshire State Register of Historic Places in 2021. 

The house’s many original features include a large center chimney with three fireplaces with paneling above, interior shutters, wide pine floors, nine over six pane windows, and a clapboard exterior. The shutters were used for temperature control. You could close them in summer to keep the heat out in summer and keep the cold out in winter. The windowpanes are small because glass was expensive to make and ship. Large pieces cost too much for most people to afford.


Front Hall
As we enter the house you will see a large photo of the Morrison family taken in the late 1800s or early 1900s, in front of the home in its original location.
The way the rooms are arranged today is different from how they would have been used when the house was built. On each side of the front hall is a large room. In the 1700s one would have been the parlor, where the family entertained guests and held important events like weddings and funerals. The other was likely used as the primary bedroom, since the attic was not finished.  In this tour, the rooms are identified by their original names or by their location in the house.



Right Front Room
Today this room is furnished with a mix of 18th and 19th century items. 
Above the fireplace is a copy of Londonderry’s 1719 petition to Governor Samuel Shute asking him to grant the early settlers the land they settled in town. At the time Londonderry also included Derry, Windham, and Derryfield (now Manchester). After many delays and lots of legal maneuvering, the charter was granted on June 21, 1722. Several members of the Morrison family were on the list of original proprietors.
The footwarmer on the hearth would have been filled with hot coals and used to keep your feet warm when traveling in the winter.  The table, chairs and “Blue Willow” dinnerware are all from the mid 1800s. 
On the wall to the right of the window is a framed piece of fabric that may have belonged to Mary Wilson of Londonderry. The Wilson family was migrated from Ireland to America in 1720, and baby Mary was born at sea during the trip. Legend has it that when pirates attacked the ship, the captain took pity on baby Mary and her family and gave her a length of blue silk for her wedding dress. It’s far more likely though that Mary got the fabric later in life. According to the ship’s log, the pirates attacked on June 17, but Mary was born later in the voyage, on June 28. 


Bed Chamber
In the 18th century, bedrooms were usually called “bed chambers.” This chamber was warm and near the center of activity, so babies, sick family members, or older people who weren’t mobile may have occupied the space. Children in the family could have slept in it at night. 
Items of interest are the rope bed, storage chest, and commode chair, a regular chair fitted with a chamber pot for those who couldn’t walk to the outhouse.


Kitchen
The kitchen is where the family cooked, gathered, and ate together every day. The women baked in the beehive oven and cooked food in cast iron kettles suspended on a crane above the fire or set on the hearth. There are also two spinning wheels in the kitchen. The large one was for spinning wool and the small one was for flax. Other tools in the kitchen related to the flax industry include a hatchel and comb used to separate and smooth the flax fibers, and a swift for holding skeins of yarn. In the 1700s, Londonderry was famous for its high-quality flax.  
Above the mantle are two muskets. The bottom one dates to 1812 and the top one dates to the 1860s.The fireplace wall is a fine place to display the muskets, but originally they wouldn’t have been kept here, where sparks from the fireplace could ignite traces of gunpowder and cause a fire.
Just off the kitchen are the side door and the only set of stairs in the house. (A door off the kitchen leads to the cellar stairs.) The pantry is also off the kitchen.


Pantry
Just like today, the 18th century pantry (sometimes called a buttery) was used to store dishes and food. Pantries were often on the north side of the house—this one is—to protect them from the hot summer sun. The potato bin in this room was found in the cellar of the home when it was at its original site. 
One wall has been left unplastered to show how the house was built. Thin wooden strips called lath were nailed to the framing of the wall and covered with plaster made of lime, sand, water, and horsehair. The walls were hard and smooth and could be whitewashed or painted. If you look closely at old plaster walls you may be able to see pieces of horsehair embedded in the plaster.  

Today the pantry is used to exhibit some of LHS’s collection of Lithia Springs objects.  Fifteen-year-old Frank Avery discovered the spring while dowsing for water on Sanford Greeley’s Londonderry farm in 1882. The water contained lithium, which was believed to prevent kidney stones, gout and other ailments. It was also promoted as good for general health and as a mixer for cocktails. The Londonderry Lithia Spring Water Company was founded in 1885 and operated until 1925. Other producers bottled and sold lithia water, but Londonderry was one of the largest suppliers and was famous world-wide. Travelers often stopped to see the spring and sample the water. 
 

Left Front Room

Rather than being furnished with period artifacts, this room serves as a changing exhibit space. Currently Civil War memorabilia, an antique table clock, and dolls are on display, along with an exhibit of 18th-century clothing, including a wedding dress.

Morrison House Plan
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Typical Cape-style house, late 18th century                         Typical floor plan. This plan is identical to the
                                                                                             Morrison House, but the stairs are on the right rather
                                                                                             than left side.

Both images from The Early House in Northeastern Vermont by Jan Leo Lewandoski in Vermont History, The Proceedings of the Vermont Historical Society, Winter 1993.


Clark Blacksmith Shop
The Clark Blacksmith Shop, built around 1840 by blacksmith Reed Page Clark, was one of several buildings on Stonehenge Farm, located at the corner of Stonehenge and Perkins roads. The property was home to the Clark family for several generations, but the blacksmith shop was abandoned after WW II.  Only the frame and roof were intact when the Clark family donated it to the LHS in 1998. LHS moved it to its current location and restored it as an example of a 19th-century trade shop.  
The shop contains many 19th-century tools and a variety of early iron objects such as hinges, horseshoes, nails, hardware, and other items routinely used in rural New Hampshire. A very large leather and wood bellows, used to force air into the forge, was rescued from the original shop. The forge itself is a reproduction.


Parmenter Barn

The Parmenter Barn is a classic example of a New England post and beam dairy barn, with a door on each end, a central floor, and a bay on each side for animal stalls and hay storage. A second floor provided additional space for hay storage. John Blood built the barn in 1859, near the intersection of High Range and Parmenter roads where #23A High Range Road is today. 

In 1910 the family sold the barn to Edward and Ralph Parmenter. The property stayed in the Parmenter family for a number of years and was ultimately sold to new owners. In 1998 the LHS acquired the dilapidated barn to save it from being torn down.  Historical Society volunteers dismantled the barn piece by piece and reconstructed it on their grounds. The project took three years, with the work completed in the spring of 2001. Today the Society uses the barn for exhibits and programs, and it is available for rentals as well.



Annis-Reynolds Carriage Shed
The shed was originally part of the Annis family homestead on Litchfield Road. The family owned Annis Grain and Lumber Mill in the early 20th century. In 2013 Ned and Helen Annis Reynolds agreed to let the shed be moved to the LHS site, where it was reassembled and attached to the barn’s north side. The shed is currently being restored and will house LHS’s collection of horse-drawn vehicles.
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